
 

 

  

Council Committee Meeting Agenda    
 

Sustainability and Economic Vitality  
Council Committee Meeting Agenda   

Virtual and In-Person Meeting in City Council Chambers 
31 East 5th Street, Tempe, AZ 85281 

March 22, 2023 
3 p.m. 

Members of the City Council will attend in person. 
Ways to connect: 

1. On your computer/tablet (Recommended) 
a. Click this link https://www.tempe.gov/SEV or copy and paste into your browser 
b. Click “Join the Virtual Meeting” 
c. Enter “SEV” in the prompt “enter the meeting password” 

2. On your phone – Dial in +1 408-418-9388; access code: 2492 352 7966 
 
Register to speak during Public Comments agenda item:  
At least 1 hour prior to the start of the meeting you must submit a public comment card by clicking this link.  
 
For further accommodations or information please contact, Nikki Amberg at (602) 885-7482 or email 
Nikki_Amberg@tempe.gov or Tonya Gray at (480) 431-2569 or email Tonya_Gray@tempe.gov. 
. 
Members of the public may attend the meeting in person or virtually through Cisco Webex Webinars or view 
the meeting recording by visiting www.tempe.gov/SEV for more information. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL  

 
2. REVIEW MEETING MINUTES  

A. February 15, 2023 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS - The committee welcomes public comment. According to the Arizona Open Meeting Law, 
the Committee may only discuss matters listed on the agenda. Matters brought up by the public under public 
appearances that are not listed on the agenda cannot be discussed by the Committee. A 3-minute limit per person 
will be in effect. 

 
A. Comment Cards Submitted 

 
4. COMMITTEE SESSION ITEMS 

 
A. Current Items and Updates 

1. Cool Pavement Update 

• Presentation from City of Tempe Engineering and Transportation Department  

• Jennifer Vanos, Associate Professor at Arizona State University available to answer questions 

• Davis Koleas, Sustainability Director at CoolSeal by GuardTop available to answer questions 
2. State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Century of Good grant 

• Presentation from City of Tempe Office of Sustainability and Resilience 
 

 
B. New Items for Consideration    

https://www.tempe.gov/government/mayor-and-city-council/council-committees/sustainability-and-economic-vitality-council-committee
https://www.tempe.gov/government/mayor-and-city-council/council-committees/council-committee-meeting-comment-card
mailto:Nikki_Amberg@tempe.gov
mailto:Tonya_Gray@tempe.gov
https://www.tempe.gov/SEV


Sustainability and Economic Vitality Council Committee Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday March 22, 2023 

2 

1. Presentation Proposals for Future Council Committee Meetings 
 
C.  Announcements  

Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

5. NEXT MEETING DATE: There will be no April Meeting 
           See tempe.gov/SEV for future meeting dates.  

6. ADJOURN  

 



1 

 

 

Council Committee Meeting Minutes 
 

 

 

Sustainability and Economic Vitality  
Council Committee Meeting Minutes   

Virtual and In-Person Meeting in City Council Chambers 

31 East 5th Street 

February 15th, 2023 

3:00 pm 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 

Meeting called to order by CM Chin at 3:03 pm with CM Chin in chambers and VM Adams joining virtually. 

  

2. REVIEW MEETING MINUTES  

A. January 11th, 2023 minutes. 

January 11, 2023 meeting minutes were approved unanimously. 

  

 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS - The committee welcomes public comment. According to the Arizona Open Meeting Law, 

the Committee may only discuss matters listed on the agenda. Matters brought up by the public under public 

appearances that are not listed on the agenda cannot be discussed by the Committee. A 3-minute limit per person 

will be in effect. 

 
 

A. Comment Cards Submitted 

Anne Till submitted a card on 02/15/2023 and joined in Chambers to read: 

Advocated for the usage of new types of soil and woodchip to encourage sustainability of Tempe 

properties, as well as create better environments for both people and animals. She said it should be a 

critical priority that the city chooses designers and builders who have a proven track record of resilience 

and sustainability for city approved projects. 

 

 

 

4. COMMITTEE SESSION ITEMS 

 

A. Current Items and Updates  

1. Resilient Tempe Master Plan 
Dr. Braden Kay and Maddie Mercer from Sustainability gave an update on the Climate 

Action Plan and key projects they are working towards. Braden emphasized adoption of GSI 

(Green Stormwater Infrastructure) to help mitigate extreme heat and drought. He said it will 

require deep collaboration with the Municipal Utilities Department as well as the Community 

Development and Engineering/Transportation departments, plus several external Tempe 

partners as well. He gave examples of the project’s success in a few smaller, individual 

scales. Last year’s budget approved funding for this master plan. VM Adams asked about 

the new landscaping on Rural between Warner and Elliott, and noted the water is just being 



2 

 

wasted in street. Braden said that’s a good example of a piece of infrastructure which could 

capture more water if properly funded. Elements of the scope of work include an Urban 

Forestry Master Plan, a utility feasibility study, and stakeholder engagement. Beyond the 

design and implementation of GSI, he said we need to look at the long-term impacts. Their 

intent is to develop a native and indigenous landscape maintenance guide as well as 

workforce development training. He referenced a tour staff took of GSI ecosystems in 

Tucson a few months ago, which SEV Council Committee staff attended as well. He 

reiterated what next steps would be in terms of permanency.  

 

2. County Island Update 
Ryan Levesque from Community Development and Maria Laughner from Economic 

Development gave updates beginning with the status of current developments – there are 

multiple housing units actively being constructed right now. Ryan shared pictures, floor 

plans, and zoning plans of those developments. Maria shared info about the Brownfields 

Coalition grant which her department is participating. VM Adams asked for some more 

details about the lukewarm developer situation. Maria explained financial markets are weary 

right now due to increased interest rate changes being imposed.   
  

3. Downtown Tempe Refresh Update 
Deputy City Manager Keith Burke introduced Community Services Deputy Director Alex 
Jovanovic, PIO Kris Baxter, and Julian Dresang from Transportation & Engineering. Julian 
talked about how many of the downtown topics were relevant to current performance 
measures. Kris discussed visible public outreach and the efforts being used to promote 
these many projects—namely window treatments at the former Rula Bula space which 
includes a QR code leading to Tempe Forum for feedback. Alex talked about landscaping’s 
30-60-90 Day Plan which should provide an immediate visual impact to downtown.  The 30 
days began with the medians (replacing gravel and planting,) the 60 days will focus on trees 
and shrubs, and the 90 days will close out with trees being installed in raised planters on 
Mill. Julian spoke about things actively being worked on despite all that is being planned, 
which include adaptive street concepts and near-term projects like string light replacement, 
installation of downtown festoon lighting on 4th,6th, and 5th street streetscapes, and the Mill 
Avenue streetscape and infrastructure project.  
 
VM Adams asked if the RFP could be moved up from May since this is such a priority. 
Julian said they cannot start construction until they have a final design, but they will try to 
move things along as fast as possible. He discussed how staff will garner community input 
and feedback between now and the Fall.  

 
CM Chin asked if the numbers on the chart on the Design slide meant what the year would 
be. Julian said yes. She then asked if Lori Foster from DTA wanted to say anything about 
her group’s thoughts on the project. Lori said they are excited and cannot wait for it to 
happen.  She said that outreach to our residents is going to be important.  They want to 
make sure the impact to some of their events is as minimal as possible and asked to make 
sure the construction schedule is as less impactful as possible. She explained they just 
went through tough times with Streetcar construction and then Covid.  She asked that the 
city do it in the summer and at nighttime.  
 
CM Chin asked to make sure that the scramble on 5th and Mill be ADA compliant, and to 
include them in the testing as well too.  She then said she remembered watching the Work 



3 

 

Study Session on 3/4/22 online and observed that everyone on Council was overwhelmingly 
enthusiastic about this project.  She said let’s not lose that enthusiasm, and the longer we 
drag it out that enthusiasm wanes.  She said it was nearly a year ago, but staff’s timeline 
shows them just starting to meet with a designer a year later, which is frustrating. She 
emphasized that this is going to be a disruption to our downtown residents and stakeholders 
and asked that they please incorporate their asks in staff’s planning.  She said that she’s 
been trying to get the downtown area activated, and she has seen the new signage, but 
asked if we are managing expectations as people start getting excited but must wait years 
to see the results.  She asked why we have not made more progress?  She further stated 
that she has inherited this as a new councilmember and told staff that they were going to 
hear questions from other councilmembers of why this is taking so long.  She reiterated that 
staff said they just met with designers, despite the plan being adopted a year ago.  She 
urged them to adopt that urgency the Council has about this project, asked for pro-active 
leadership, and told them to let council know what is happening as it happens.   
 
Julian said he would take that to heart and said they did not want the thought to be that staff 
is dragging their feet. He explained that he could see how the interpretation is they were 
moving slow, but said it is a priority for staff as well.  He said they wanted to work and 
partner with stakeholders to include their input.  He committed to making this happen as 
quickly as possible but said they did not want to sacrifice quality and make a mistake. 
 
Keith said staff would work on communicating better and challenged staff to speed up the 
process.   
 
CM Chin said that she appreciated their promise to try speeding things up and asked that 
they please be proactive and let Council know what is going on, including any challenges, to 
help manage expectations. 
 
VM Adams said that Council approved the project last March, and that they talked to 
constituents about it.  She said that the delay negatively affects their standing with the 
community as a year has gone by and very little has happened.  She said it does not sit well 
with anyone and felt the same frustration as CM Chin.  She asked that staff close those 
year-long gaps. 

 

  

 

B. New Items for Consideration 

1. VM Adams asked that the Cool Pavement Pilot Program be placed on the March SEV agenda.  

She said that she is going with Transportation staff to look at Phoenix’s pilot program and will 

report back at the next meeting. 

 

 

C.  Announcements 

1. CM Chin announced that she is doing a GREEN Storytime event at the Tempe Public Library.  

 

 

5. NEXT MEETING DATE: Wednesday March 22nd, 2023, 3:00 PM 
 

 



Sustainability and Economic Development Committee 

March 22, 2023

Cool Pavement



Performance Measure

1.22: Achieve adopted standards for Pavement Quality Index (PQI) equal to a citywide 
average rating of 70 or higher.

2



Cool Pavement

What is Cool Pavement?
Pavement with reflective surfaces that decreases the surface temperature of the pavement.

Why Cool Pavement?
Urban Heat Island Effect



CoolSeal by Guardtop
Sealcoat that cures on top of existing pavement

Rejuvenator PlusTI by Pavement Technology Inc (PaveTech)
Rejuvenator that absorbed into existing pavement

Pilot Programs
Phoenix – CoolSeal by Guardtop (Complete October 2021)
Tucson – PlusTI by PaveTech (In-Progress)

Product Technology Available



CoolSeal by Guardtop
Solar Reflectance Index (SRI) values meets LEED credit minimum of 33 at 
installation

At installation (33-38); 10 months later (19-30)
Untreated asphalt: (8-12)

Surface Temperature Results
12°F-10.5°F lower at noon and afternoon
2.4°F lower at sunrise
4.8°F lower at sunset

Air Temperature Results
0.5°F average lower in evening
0.3°F average lower in day

Observations and Findings from Phoenix Pilot



CoolSeal by Guardtop
Mean Radiant Temperature

5.5°F increase in noon and afternoon, on average
0.5°F decrease at sunrise and sunset

Subsurface Temperature
2.1°F lower under cool pavement surface

Public Perception
Divergent opinions expressed among Phoenix residents regarding visual 
appeal and aesthetics

Observations and Findings from Phoenix Pilot



CoolSeal by Guardtop
Aesthetics

Observations and Findings from Phoenix Pilot



Rejuvenator Plus TI by PaveTech
Installed as Pink, Cures Translucent
SRI Values: Not Released Yet from Pilot 
Study 

Expected to meet LEED value of 33 at time 
of installation

Performance Attributes

Observations and Findings from Tucson Pilot



Planned Locations 
CoolSeal by Guardtop

Tempe install: Jaycee Park – Spring 2024
Rejuvenator PlusTI by PaveTech

Tempe install: Hardy Dr between Baseline Rd and Southern Ave
Funding Sources

Local Funding (100% local funds)
Not recommended for full implementation due to current cost

Federal Funding (anticipated to be 80% federal; 20% local)
Healthy Streets Program
Intent to Partner 

Staff Recommendations



Staff Recommendations
Unit Costs 

Option 1: CoolSeal by Guardtop
($5.00/SY)

Option 2: Reclamite PlusTI by PaveTech
($3.50/SY)

Option 3: Premium non-reflective sealcoat
($2.50/SY)



Questions?



State Farm
Century of Good Grant

Sustainability and Economic Vitality
Council Committee 

March 22, 2023

1



2

Background
Early 2022 State Farm ESG 
meetings with Sustainability 
and Resilience Office 

State Farm Celebrated 100th

Anniversary 

June 2022 Awarded Tempe 
$500,000



3

Sustainability and Resilience Grants
Tempe’s Sustainability and Resilience Office has brought in more than $2.5 million 
to advance sustainability and create resiliency. 

Not Including:
• Robert Wood Johnson Foundation 

Cool Kids, Cool Places, Cool Futures
Awarded Amount: $650,000

• State Farm Century of Good
Awarded Amount: $500,000

• Vitalyst Health Foundation Spark Grant
Awarded Amount: $25,000



4

State Farm Funding
Greening Our Schools Supporting Our Resilience Energy Hub

Students planting at McClintock High School City staff speaking with community members 
about EnVision Tempe, a resilience energy hub 
pilot project. 



5

State Farm Funding – Greening Schools 



6

Greening Schools
Current Projects
Conolly Middle
50 Trees
April 1

McClintock High 
Maintenance on Green 
House
Native Garden 

Future Projects
Thew Elementary

Spracale Elementary

Cecil Shamley
Elementary

Tempe High

Heat Exposure



Resilient Energy Hubs 
and Resilience Hubs

Green Codes 
and Standards

Transportation 
Demand Management 

and Mobility Hubs
Climate Justice

Neighborhoods

Business

Youth

7

State Farm Funding – EnVision
Highlight ActionAgendas



8

State Farm Funding – EnVision
Current Opportunities:
Ice Machine

Commercial Kitchen and Food Storage Renovation

External Beautification – murals, adaptive streets, 
shade

Community Engagement

Future Opportunities:
Energy and Battery Infrastructure
Solar panel installation (delayed)

Battery storage – partnership with SRP

EnVision Tempe on Dorsey and Apache 



9

Questions?


	2023_3_22_SEV_Agenda
	2023_2_23_SEV _Meeting Minutes
	CoolSeal Presentation_SustainabilityCommittee_03222023_V2
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11

	State Farm Century of Good Grant
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9


